PKF SRIDHAR & SANTHANAM LLP

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited
("the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of Profit
and profit including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("ICAJ") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 22(g), which states that the Company had recognized urea subsidy income
of INR 2,914 lakhs in during the financial year 2020-21 considering that benchmarking of its cost of
production of urea using Naphtha with that of gas-based urea manufacturing units is arbitrary and for
which the Company had already filed a writ petition against the Department of Fertilizers before the
Hon’ble High court of Delhi. Based on legal opinion obtained, the management believes that the criteria
for recognition of subsidy revenue is met.

We draw attention to Note 40 of the financial statements which describes about the proposed merger
of the Company with Paradeep Phosphates Limited on a going concern basis. As at the date of approval
of the financial statements, the Company is in the process of filing of the Scheme with Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal (the “NCLT").

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context. :
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.

Sl. | Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit
No | (Refer Note 9 and 22 to the financial Matter
statements)
1. Impact of government policies /
notifications on  recognition  of | Our audit procedures included among others, the
concession income and its | following:
recoverability + Read the relevant nofifications and policies
issued by the Department of Fertilizers to
The Company recognises concession ascertain the recognition of concession
(subsidy) income receivable from the income, adjustments thereto recognised
Department of Fertilizers, Government of pursuant to changes in the rates and basis for
India as per the New Pricing Scheme for determination of concession income.
Urea and as per Nutrient Based Subsidy |+ Obtained an understanding of the process
Policy for Phosphatic and Potassic and tested the design and operating
fertilizers at the time of sale of goods to its effectiveness of controls as established by the
customers. During the current year, the management in recognition and assessment
Company has recognised concession of the recoverabilty of the concession
income of INR 2,51,026.70 Lakhs and as income.
at 31 March 2024 has receivables of INR |+ Evaluated the management's assessment
45,091.91 Lakhs relating to such income. regarding compliance with the relevant
conditions as specified in the notifications and
We focused on this area because policies and collections of concession
recognition of concession income and income.
assessment of its recoverability is subject |+ Performed substantive procedures to
to significant judgement of interpretation of understand and validate the basis of
various notifications from the Department computation of concession income with
of Fertilizers and the positions based on underlying notifications and policies.
various litigations thereof ¢ Tested the ageing analysis and assessed the
information used by the management to
The area of judgement includes certainty determine the recoverability of the
around the satisfaction of conditions concession income by considering collections
specified in the notifications and policies, against historical trends.
collections and  provisions thereof, |e Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in
likelihood of variation in the related the financial statements.
computation rates, basis for determination
of accruals of concession income and
timely recoverability thereof.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Directors report, corporate governance,
Management Discussion & Analysis Report and business responsibility and sustainability report but
does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinicn on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and Board of Directors for Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materiai uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books. Attention is also drawn to the matters
stated in the paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(9) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of
the Act and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
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iii.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 7 and 35 to the financial statements;

i. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company {o or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

The dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the
previous year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment
of dividend.

As stated in note 13 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company has
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with Section 123
of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

Relying on representations/explanations from the company and software vendor and based
on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective softwares, except for the feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility was not enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes for the
accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of accounts.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated
throughout the year for the respective accounting softwares, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

Page 5 of 13



3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0039905/§200018

%

Seethalakshmi M
Partner NG
Membership No. 208525~
ICAI UDIN: 24208545BKAEMV7437

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 23 May 2024
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Annexure A

Referred to in paragraph 1 on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even date to the members of Mangalore Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited (“the Company”) on the
Financial Statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024.

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

a)

b)

(a)
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme,
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the
year. in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3A to the
financial statements, as confirmed by bank are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year and hence this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act,
1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The inventory except goods in transit has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.In respect
of goods-in-transit, subsequent goods receipts have been verified. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the managementis appropriate. The discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

Based on our audit procedures & according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has neither given any loan, guarantees and security nor made any investment during the
year covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
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(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b)

(as amended). Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under Sub-Section (1) of Section
148 of the Act in respect of the products/services of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company as specified under sub section (1) of section 148 of
the Act, for maintenance of cost records in respect of the products manufactured by the Company,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not, made a detailed examination of cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues as
applicable with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us
and the records of the Company examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at 31 March
2024, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute,
except as stated below:

Amount | Amount Period to
Name of the Nature of . which Forum where dispute
demanded paid (In . .
Statute the Dues amount is pending
(In Lakhs) Lakhs)
relates
The Income Tax The High Court of
Act, 1961 Income tax 358.04 52.89 FY 2013-14 Karnataka
The Central Customs, Excise and
Excise Act, Excise duty | 638.96 23.96 ’;:22(;)1152_’115 Service
1944 Tax Appellate Tribunal
Karnataka Value .
Added Tax Act, | Entry tax 414.18 . FY 2011-12 | 11e High Court of
Karnataka
2003
The Customs | Customs 215,06 o7 | FY2011-12 | SUstoms, Exciseand
Act, 1962 duty to 2015-16 Tax Appellate Tribunal
Commissioners of
e Susioms | Customs 87.61 438 | FY2016-17 | Customs,
' y Nhava Sheva
Additional
The Customs Customs Commissioners of
Act, 1962 duty 22.00 ) FY2017-18 Customs,
Nhava Sheva
Commissioner of
The Customs | Customs 44.97 - FY 2017-18 | Customs,
Act, 1962 duty -
Vijayawada
Additional
The Customs Customs Commissioners of
Act, 1962 duty 74.93 - FY2018-19 | G istoms,
Nhava Sheva
. Customs, Excise and
I\:f fgngince Service tax 15.49 1.14 ’:3(2200 1152~ —1163 Service
' Tax Appeliate Tribunal
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(viii)

(i)

x)

(xii)

(xiii)

(a)

(d)

(€)

(a)

(b)

(b)

As per the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no amount has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year and hence the question of whether the requirements of section 42 and
section 62 of the Act have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes
for which the funds were raised does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. .

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been
filed by secretarial auditor or by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government of India for the period
covered by our audit.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received during the
year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi company in accordance with Nidhi Rules 2014. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details
of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as reqmred by the
applicable accounting standards. : . .
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(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii

(@)

(b)

(@)

(b)

(d)

)

(xviii)

(xix)

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2
of 1934).

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of india Act,
1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India and hence the questions of fulfilling criteria of a CIC, and in case the Company is an
exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it continues to fulfill such criteria, do not arise. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, none
of the group companies are Core Investment Company (CIC) and hence the question of number of
CICs which are part of the Group does not arise. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company having spent the required amount, there is no
amount pending to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act within a period of six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second prov;so to sub sectlon (5) of
sectlon 135 of the said Act. IR
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(b) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not required to transfer unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said
Act, pursuant to ongoing project to special account in compliance with provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0039905/5200018

Seethalakshmi M
Partner N

Membership No. 208545
ICAI UDIN: 24208545BKAEMV7437

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 23" May 2024

Page 11 0of 13



Annexure B

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) on ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of Mangalore
Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material~misstat§ments
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due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.0039905/5200018

Seethalakshmi M\
Partner
Membership No. 208545

ICAI UDIN: 24208545BKAEMV7437

Place of Signature: Bangalore
Date: 23 May 2024
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Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2024
(Alhamounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 1.06.580.61 1.05.970.32
Capital work-in-progress 3A 1.117.25 1.408.49
Right-of-use assets B 1.543.94 1.620.84
Intangiblc assets 4 0418 107.24
Fiancial assets
(1) Investments R - -
(i) Others 6 S88.74 304.71
Income fax assets (net) V973 144.08
Other non-current assets 7 2,521.62 627.64
1,12,556.09 1,10,473.52
Current assets
Inventories 8 16,855.85 24,113.96
Financial assets
(1) Investments 3 0.10 0.10
(i) Trade receivables 9 60.425.82 75.724.26
(i11) Cash and cash equivalents 10 27.942.94 32.979.95
(iv) Other bank halances 11 4.886.42 3,605.39
(v) Others 6 5.480.99 S5.982.83
Other current assets 7 14,894.71 13.034.94
1,30,486.83 1,35,441.43
Total assets 2.43,042.92 2,65,914.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 11.854.87 11.854.87
Other equity I3 82.113.53 68,463.95
Total equity 93,968.42 80,318.82
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities
(1) Borrowings 14 29.880.96 35.667.53
(11) Lease habilities 15 1,.862.23 1.886.60
(1) Others 16 - -
Provisions 17 1.272.19 1,180.60
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 10.396.26 0,149.80
43,411.04 44,884.61
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(1) Borrowings 19 72,063.77 1,00,099.37
(11} Lease labilities 15 55.32 36.07
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 20 111511 4.582.66
Total oytstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 13.802.30 19.674.70
‘enterprises 20
(iv) Others 16 15,153.08 12,820.50
Liabilitics for current tax (net) 752.42 439.33
Other current liabilitics 21 1,627.44 1.941.22
Provisions 17 1,093.42 1,117.67
Total liabilities 1,05,662.86 1,40,711.52
Total equity and liabilities 2,43,042.92 2,65,914.95
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Summary of material accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the nd AS financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors off

Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP Akshay Poddar Nitin M Kantak
Chartered Accountants Chairman Whole-time Director
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 0039908 S200013 DIN: 00008686 DIN: 08029847

Seethalakshii M

Partner . o T. M., Muralidhgran Vighneshwar G Bhat
Membership Number: 2085437 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place of Signatwre: Bangalore

Date: May 23, 2024 Date: May 23, 2024
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Mangaiore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts m Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Nofes
otes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Reventre froum contracts with customers 22 379544006 36415240
Other income 23 4.126.20 3,004.02
Total income 3.83.670.36 3,67.217.02
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 1.85.488.938 1.99.625.52
Purchases of traded goods 23 47.051.99 25.813.56
Changes in inventories of finished goods.
work-in-progress and traded goods 26 34838 1184237
Employee benefits expense 27 6.782.89 6481718
Finance costs 2K 1049299 10.437.76
Deprectation and amortisation expense 29 7.457.77 3.967.50
Other expenses 30 99,144.94 R9.010.54
Total expenses 3,59,603.34 3.49,614.43
Profit before tax 24,067.02 17.602.59
Tax expense 3]
Current tax * Minimum Alternate Tax 4.310.00 3.077.00
Deferred tax charge 7 (credity 4.275.50 1.060.08
Total fax expense 8,385.50 4,137.08
Profit tor the year 15,481.52 13,465.51
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement (losses)ygains on defined benefit plan (83.30) (48.42)

Inconme tax eftect on above 29.11 16.92
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income (54.19) (31.50)
Total comprehensive income for the year 15,427.33 13,434.01
Earnings per equity share (in INR) 32
{nominal value per share INR 10 (Previous vear: INR 10)]
Basic £3.00 11.36
Diluted 13.06 1130
Summary of material accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For PKF Sridhar & Santhanam LLP
Chartered Accountants o
ICA] Firm Registration Nuinber: 003990S/5200018

Seethalakshmi M ‘\\
Partner
Membership Number: 208545

Place of Signaturc: Bangalore
Date: May 23, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Akshay Poddar
Chairman
DIN: 00008686

Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 23, 2024

Nitin M Kantak
Whole-time Director
DIN: 08029847

Vighneshwar G Bhat
Company Sccretary




Mangalore Chenticals and Fertilizers Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Albamounts m chan Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Notes March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

A Operating activities
Profit betore tax

Adjustiments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortsation expense
Netloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
tmpairment of capital wark m progress

Proviston for imparment of ather 5

Far value Toss {gam) on financil instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Unrealised foreign exchange differences (net)
Fimance costs

Interest meome

Provisions no longer required written back
Operating profits before working capital changes

Working capital changes:

tInerease)-decrease n Inventories

(Increase)’decrease in Trade recervables

tincrease)decrease m Other financial assets
tIncrease)-decrease m Other assets

{Decrease)merease m Trade payables

(Decrease)merease i Other tinancial labihues
(Decreaseymerease n Other current habilities and provisions

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Income tax pard

Net cash flow from/{used in) operating activities (A)

B Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including caputal work-m-

progress and capital advances

Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment

Investments m bank deposits (having orgmal maturity of more than

three months)

Redempuionmaturity of bank deposits (having origmal matunity of
more than three months)

Interest received

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B)

¢ Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowmgs
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Payment of principat portion of tease haiblities
Payment of interest portion of lease Laiblities
Proceeds from/(repayment of) short-term borrowings (net)
Finance cost paid
Dividend paid to equity shareholders
Net cash flow (used in)/ from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Bank balances on current accounts

Bank balances on deposit accounts with orizmal maturity of three months or less

Total cash and cash equivalents

The summary of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 15 as below

Non current borrowings (including current maturities)

At beginning of the year

Cash flow changes

Non-cash changes (foreign currency exchange difference)
Atend of the year

Current borrowings (excluding current matunties of long term borrowings)

At beginming of the year

Cash flow changes

Non-cash changes (foreign currency exchange difference)
At end of the year

Leasc Liabihities (including cwrrent maturities)

At beginning of the year
Cash flow changes
Non-cash changes
At end of the year

2406702 17002 59

24 745777 3967 A0
30 57778 321 96

12020 -
30 123365 -

(22234 (245 23)
3808 {90 26)

28 10,492 99 10437 76
23 (3.291 72) (2.3221%)
23 {630 33) (389 08)
39,517.10 31,283.04

725811 18,803 31
15,298 44 (9.221 49)
1.144 07 (57 25)
(3.059 34) (27035 44)
(9.330.14) (16,131 79

243018 RIS

32659 043 D0
14,061.91 (8,558.38)

53,579.01 22,724.66
(3,952.58) {3.512.00)

49,626.43 19,212.00

(9808 1)
191 99

(13,057 79)

(30,529 41)
22848

(3.237 40)

1180021 7.143 06
2.630.39 2.093 71
{8,243.71) {24,300.96)

204 89 23.320.59
(9.192.49) (6,989.69)
(45 59) {33.39)
(198 24) {202.05)

(24.876.48)
{10,534 09)

(14.723.38)
(10,087 99y

13 (1,777.73) (1.:422.18)
(46,419.73) (10,138.29)
(5,037.01) (15,227.25)
10 32,979.95 48.207.20
27,942.94 32,979.95
10
203 226
10,190 91 330269
17.750.00 29.675.00
27,942.94 32,979.95
14 44,938 78 28,607 88

(8.987.60)

16.330.90

14 35,951.18 44,938.78
19 90,828 14 1.05.553.72
(24.876.48) (14,723 38)

41.89 (2.20)

19 65,993.55 90,828.14
15 1.922.67 211375
(45.59) (33.59)

40.47 (157.49)

13 1,917.55 1,922.67
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Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
At the beginning of the year 11.85.15.150 11.851.52 11.85.15.150 11.851.52
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period - - - -
errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 11.85.15.150 11.851.52 11.85.15.150 11.851.52
Changes during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 11,85,15,150 11,851.52 11,85,15,150 11,851.52

In addition o above. equity share capital as at March 31. 2024 includes Forfeited Shares (amount paid-up) of INR 3.35 Lakhs
(March 31. 2023: INR 3.35 Lakhs).

b) Other equity

Capital General Retained Total
redemption reserve earnings

reserve

Note 13 Note 13 Note 13
Balance as at April 1. 2022 480.78 5.385.71 50,585.63 56.452.12
Changes in accounting policy / prior period errors - - - -
Profit for the year - - 13.465.51 13,465.51
Other comprehensive income - - (31.50) (31.50)
Total comprehensive income - - 13.434.01 13.434.01
Cash dividends (Refer Note 13) - - (1.422.18) (1A422.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 480.78 5,385.71 62,597.46 68,463.95
Balance as at April 1. 2023 480.78 5.385.71 62,597.46 68.463.95
Changes in accounting policy / prior period errors - - - -
Profit for the year - - 15.481.52 15.481.52
Other comprehensive income - - (54.19) (54.19)
Total comprehensive income - - 15.427.33 15.427.33
Cash dividends (Refer Note 13) - - (1,777.73) (1,777.73)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 480.78 5,385.71 76,247.06 82,113.55

Retained earnings - Retained earnings represent profits generated by the Company not distributed to shareholders.

Capital redemption reserve - The said reserve was created by way of transfer from general reserve on redemption of preference
shares. This reserve account can be applied in paying up unissued shares to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid
bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve - Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, general reserve was created through transfer of net income at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend
distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year. then the total dividend
distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of the Companies Act, 2013, the
requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However. the
amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

I. Corporate information

Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited (*MCF" or “the Company™) is a public limited company domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on two
recognized stock exchanges in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Level 11, UB Tower, UB
city, 24, Viual Mallya Road. Bengaluru 560001, Karnataka, India. The Company is primarily engaged in the
manufacture, purchase and sale of fertilisers. The Company has manufacturing facility in India. Information on
related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 38.

The Ind AS financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 23. 2024,
2. Basis of preparation of Ind AS financial statements

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time
to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule 1), as applicable to the Ind AS financial statements.

The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for assets and liabilities which
are required to be measured at fair value. The Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The material accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial starement have
been applied consistently, except for the changes in accounting policy for amendments to the standard that were
issued effective for the financial year beginning from on or after April 1, 2023 as stated in Note 2.3,

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset

is treated as current when it is:

* expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

e held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢ expected Lo be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

o held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

* there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and

cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. - Ag\\

LANGALOLRE




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

(b) Foreign currencies

The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR. which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date, the transaction first qualities for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an
average rate, it the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates al the dates of the initial ransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.c.. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognized in other comprehensive income (“OCI™) or the statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or
statement of profit and loss, respectively).

(¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* in the principal market for the asset or Lability, or

* i the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Ind AS financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement.

such as assets held for sule in discontinued operations. External valuers are involved, wherever considered necessary.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature. characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained
above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

(d) Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the company as a part of contract. The Company has concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements,

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account and is tax collected on value
added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly. it is excluded from revenue.

The disclosures of signiticant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.2.

Sule of products

Revenue from sale of product is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on dispatch of the product. The normal credit term is 15 to 120 days upon delivery.

Revenue from the sale of products. including concession receivable from the Government of India under the
applicable New Pricing Scheme / Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy. is recognised when control of the products has
transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Revenue towards satisfaction of performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net
of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services
rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the company as a
part of contract.

Concessions in respect of Urea, as notified under the New Pricing Scheme, is recognized with adjustments for
escalation/de~escalation in the prices of inputs and other adjustments, as estimated by the management in accordance
with the known policy parameters in this regard.

Subsidy for Phosphatic and Potassic (P&K) fertilisers is recognized as per the rates notified by the Government of
India in accordance with Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy from time to time.

Freight subsidy on Urea, Complex fertilisers, etc. is recognized in accordance with the specified parameters and
notified rates.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, and consideration payable to the customer (if any)




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

(1) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception.

(i) Significant financing component

The Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 113, the
Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a signiticant financing component
it it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the
customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Sale of services
Service income is recognized. on an accrual basis. at agreed rate in accordance with the terms of the agreement.
lmerest Income

Interest income from dealers and others on delayed payments is recognized to the extent the Company is reasonably
certain of ther ultimate collection.

Other interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included under the head “other income™ in the statement of protit
and loss.

Contract balances
Contract asseis

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
p=4 [= S

Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before

payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A trade receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditiona! (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in paragraph (o) Financial Instruments.

Contract liahilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract.

(e) Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected usetul life of t
asset.

LANGALOL
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(f) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and Habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted. at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating 1 items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the
statement of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction), Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitics and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deductible temporary

=

differences.

Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable protit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement
of profit and loss (either in OCI or in equity in correlation to the underlying transaction).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the year.
The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that it is probable that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified year, i.e.. the year for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the “MAT credit
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it
will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

When the tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, the tax paid is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. Otherwise,
expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of taxes paid. The net amount of tax recoverable from, or
payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

HGALORE
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(g) Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS ie. 1 April 2015, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment (PPE) recognised as at 1 April 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the PPE.

Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for fong-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement, if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. ltems of stores and spares
that meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment are capitulized al cost. otherwise, such items are classified
as inventories.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets, estimated by the management, as
follows:

Usetul life (vears)

Buildings Sto 60
Railway sidings 15
Roads, drainage and culverts 51030
Plant and equipment (continuous process plant) 25
Computer equipment Jand 6
Electrical installations and fittings 10
Office equipment Sand 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Cranes and locomotives 15
Vehicles &and 10

For the purpose of depreciation calculation, residual value is determined as 5% of the original cost for all the assets.
as estimated by the management basis independent assessment by an expert. The Company, based on assessment
made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates following assets, not included above, over the
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
The management believes that these estimated useful lives reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

(i) The useful lives of components of certain plant and equipment are estimated as 2 to 20 years.

(i) Insurance/ capital/ critical stores and spares are depreciated over the remaining useful life of related plant and
equipment or useful life of insurance/capital/ critical spares, whichever is lower.

(iit) The useful lives of certain vehicles are estimated as 3 to 5 years,

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
tinancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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(h) Intangible assets

On transition © Ind AS, the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets
recognised as at T April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

[ntangible assets are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of euch reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Rescarch and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures are recognised as intangible asset when the
Company can demonstrate:

s the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

e intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset,

s its future economic benefits,

¢ the availability of resources to complete the asset and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition. the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use.

Computer Software

The computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life of 5 years, as estimated by
the management.

(i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(j) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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The Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c.. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-ol-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (1) Impairment of
non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting trom a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. The Company's lease liabilities are included in Borrowings.

Short-tern leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be of low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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(k) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its
present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

¢ Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

e Finished goods and Work-in-progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

»  Traded Goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition,

Materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost il the finished
goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

() Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU™) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash tlow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country in which the entity
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss,
net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific (o the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution pavable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense. when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash retund.

Retirement benefit in the form of superannuation fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
established a Superannuation Fund Trust to which contributions are made each month. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the superannuation fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. The Company has no other obligations beyond its monthly contributions.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made 0 a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
accur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o the date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:
®  service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and
*  net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such abscnces as the additional amount that it expects Lo pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for
twelve months after the reporting date. Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer
the settlement for a period beyond twelve months, the same is presented as non-current liability.
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(0) Financial instruments

A fancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial hability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company commits to
purchasc or sell the asset,

Sll/,?.\"t’(/ll("ﬂf nreasurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classitied in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCTH

* Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
s Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt mstruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost, it both of the following conditions are met:

{i)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows;
and

(i) Contractual terms of the asser give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and seliing the
financial assets; and

(i) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Equity Instruments

All equity mvestments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as FVTPL. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCH to statement of protit and loss. even on sale of investment. Equity instruments included within the
FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A [inancial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a [inancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

*  The rights to receive cash flows trom the asset have expired; or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through® arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the Tower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure,

The Company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, twelve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on twelve-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

The twelve-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within
twelve months after the reporting date. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.c.. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period
is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head “other
expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company categorizes them into
Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:
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Stage | When financial assets are first recognized, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12 months
ECLs.

Stage | financial assets also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the financial assets has been
reclassified from Stage 2,

Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved,
and the financial assets has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Financial assets considered credit impaired. The Company records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.
Financial labilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings. trade and other
payables, and derivative financial instruments.

Suhsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading, unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no re-classification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a re-classitication is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets.

A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant o its operations. 1 the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the re-classification prospectively
from the re-classification date, which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains
or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet. if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and scttle the liabilitics simultancously.

(p) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, currency and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
and loss.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(r) Cash dividend to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(s) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company: or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficicnt reliability. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the Ind AS financial statements.

(ty Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders

(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
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The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue. share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(u) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses {including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the
Company), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Operating segments of the Company are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Ind AS financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asscts and liabilitics, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
years.

The Company bases its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Ind AS financial statements are
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. The judgements. estimates and assumptions management has made which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Ind AS financial statements are as below:

Revenue from contracts with customers

Concessions in respect of urea, as notified under the New Pricing Scheme, is recognized with adjustments for
escalation/de—escalation in the prices of inputs and other adjustments, as estimated by the management in accordance
with the known policy parameters in this regard. The Company recognises urea concession income from the
Government of India (“GOI™) based on estimates as per the GOI notification dated June 17, 2015 and changes, if
any, are recognised in the year of finalisation of the prices by the GOI under the scheme.

Also, the Company determines and updates its assessment of expected rebates periodically and the accruals are
adjusted accordingly. Estimates of expected rebates are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Company’s
past experience regarding these amounts may not be representative of actual amounts in the future.

Property. plant and equipment

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment is derived on determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's
assets are determined by management at the time of acquisition of asset and is reviewed periodically, including at
each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life.
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Impairment of finuncial and non-financial assets

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of impairment loss on the financial and
non-financial assets. The calculations of impairment loss are sensitive to underlying assumptions.

Tax provisions und contingencies

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amounts of tax provisions and contingencies.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and MAT credit entitlements to the extent it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which these losses and credit entitlements can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuation.
An actuarial valuation involves various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of
such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal valuation techniques. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
Jjudgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
mstruments.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
April 1,2023:

(i) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments to Ind AS & clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. They also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. "

(ii) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments to Ind AS 1 provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are
more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an impact on the
Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items
in the Company’s financial statements."
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(iii) Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

The amendments to Ind AS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception. so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases and
decommissioning liabilities.

The above amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly atfect the current or future periods.”

2.4 Standards issued but not vet effective

There are no standards or amendments issued on or before March 31,2024 but not effective, which may have any
material impact on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company

{ This space has been intentionally left blank]
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3A Property, plant and equipment

Cost Depreciation Net book value
As at Apnl Additions Disposals As at March As at Apnl For the On As at March As at March
£.2023 3102024 1. 2023 vear Disposals 312024 312004

Freehold tand 0.817.79 - - 0.817.79 - - - - 6.817.79
Butldings 5,100 96 - - 50096 121340 15525 - 1.368 65
Railway sidings 73307 - - 733.07 388.02 59.45 - 44747
Roads. drainage and culverts 41248 3743 .04 140,87 25534 17.09 - 27233 R
Plant and equipment ™' 1.21.508.89 7.82130 1.878.01 12745158 2725854 6.622.17  1.120.68 32.760.03 9£.691.55
Elecerical nstalfations and fittmgs 24470 - - 24470 17452 16.55 B 191.07 3303
Oftice equipment 440.69 3967 192 484 44 291,73 3463 I.68 324.70 153974
Furniture and fixtures 31263 1573 020 32816 210.02 17.76 016 22762 100,54
Cranes and locomaotives 206.99 47.03 - 25402 140.40 [3.99 - [6h.39 93.63
Vehicles - Owned 27230 408 .94 280l 635203 14799 5325 [7.09 18415 408 48
Total 1,36,056.50 8,370.10 1,909.38 1,42,517.22 30,085.98 6,990.24 1,139.61 35,936.61 1,06,580.61

Opening Addinens  Capitalised [mpairment Closing
Capital work-in-progress “' 1,408.49 8.199.06 8,370.10 126.20 1,117.23
Previous year

Cost Depreciation Net book value
As at April Additions Disposals As at March As at April For the On As at March As at March
1,2022 312023 £, 2022 vear Disposals 31,2023 31, 2023

Freehold Tand 0.817.79 - - 6.817.79 - - - - 0.817.79
Buildings 5.227.20 - 126,30 5,100.96 112143 156,45 64.50 121540 3.887.50
Ratlway sidings 733.07 - - 733.07 328.57 59 45 - 388.02 34503
Roads. drainage and culverts 42847 - 1599 $12.48 24950 20.60 14.76 25534 [57.14
Plant and equipment " 66.563.60  $7.007 26 215206 12150880 2329081 544937 148104 27.258 54 9425035
Electrical installations and fittings 23906 - 14.36 244.70 169.30 17.55 12,53 174.52 7018
Office equipment 39023 03 34 888 146,69 203.08 3022 155 20073 154,94
Furniture and fixtures 366,08 4.60 58.05 312,63 243.39 18.87 5244 210.02 H02.61
Cranes and locomotives 207.07 - 0.08 206.99 126.78 19.68 0.06 H46.40 60.39
Vehicles - Owned 219.71 61.70 9211 272530 124.81 30.09 6.91 147.99 124.31
Total 81,212.43  57,228.90 2,384.83 1,36,056.50  25,918.09 5,802.28  1,634.39 30,085.98 1,05,970.3

Opening Addittons  Capitahsed Impairment Closing
Capital work-in-progress *) 31,738.51  26,898.88  57.228.90 - 1,408.49

{a) Plant and machinery and capital work-in-progress additions during the period includes TNR Nil Lakhs (March 31,2023 - INR 1,331 91 Lakhs) and INR 96.94 Lakhs (March 31
INR 17.97 Lakhs). respectively, towards capitalisation of borrowing cost. The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 9.49%% (March 31,

:9.27%). which is the weighted average interest rate of borrowings.
(b) Refer Note 14 and 19 for details of property. plant and equipment pledged as security.

(&) Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 111723 - - - 1.117.25
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - B
Total 1.117.25 - - - 1,117.25
As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 830.60 451.21 422 2.26
Projects temporarily suspended - - 3.54 16.66 120.20
Total 830.60 451.21 1.76 118.92 1,408.49
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3B Right-of-use assets

Cost Depreciation Net book value
Asat Apnl Addinons Disposals As at March s at April For the On As at March As at March
1. 2023 31,2024 [RIAR] Vel Disposals 312024 31,2024
Right-of-use land (Refer Note 33) 1.989.94 N - 1.989.94 38610 9653 - 482,63 1.507 31
Right-of-use buildings (Refer Note 333 4312 4047 1.89 81.70 20,12 20.84 1.89 15.07 36.63
Total 2,033.06 4047 1.89 2,071.64 412,22 117.37 1.89 327.70 1,543.94
Previous year
Cost Depreciation Net book value
As at Apnil Additions Disposals As at March As at April For the On As at March As at March
1.2022 31,2023 1.2022 vear Disposals 3. 2023 31,2023
Right-ot-use land (Reter Note 33) 1.980 94 - - 1.989 a4 28058 9 32 - 38610 1003 84
Right-of-use buildings (Refer Note 33} 23310 - 18998 4312 7403 1342 03.35 3612 17.00
Total 2,223.04 - 189,98 2,033.06 363.63 (11,94 63.35 412.22 1,620.84
4. Intangible assets
Cost Amortisation Net book value
Asat Apnl Additions Disposals As at March As at April For the On As at March As at March
. 2023 3t 2024 12023 vear Disposals 312024 31,2024
Computer software 47.10 - 40261 248.27 5016 - 298 43 104.18
Total 47.10 - 402,61 248.27 50.16 - 298.43 104,18
Previous year
Cost Amortisation Net book value
As at April Additions Disposals As at March As at April For the On As at March As at March
t, 2022 31, 2023 1,2022 vear Disposals 31, 2023 31,2023
Computer software 302.89 5262 - 104.99 53.28 - 248.27 107.24
Total 302.89 52.62 - 194.99 53.28 - 248.27 107.24
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Non-current Curvrent
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31,2023

5. Financial assets - Investnents
{Unquoted)

Bangalore Beverages Limuted 20,000.00 2000000 - -
{200,000 (March 1. 2023 200.000) Redeemable

cumulative preference shares off Re 1 each with

coupon rate of 10%% p a. repayable atier 20 years|

Less: Provision for impaimment in value ot

myestment (20 000 00) (20 D0 N0y - “

Aditva Birla Sun Life Low Durauon Fund - Growth

Regular Plan - - 010 0t

{22 199 (March 31, 2023 22 199y unus of INR

600 96 {(March 31, 2023 INR 361 83) each]

Total 0.10 0.10
of unquoted mvestment (uross) 20,000 06 20,000 D0 a0 o1
of imparment  value of mvestment 20,000 0n 201,000 00 - -

6. Financial assets - Others

Fmancial assets at faw value through profit or loss

Dervauves not designated as hedgaes® - - V54 26 51

Francial assets at amortised cost

Secucity deposis 388 74 39471 - -

Rebate  discount recervable from suppliers - - 23510 938 3

305 79 518 86

Other recervable - N
Less. Provision for impaisment of other asset - - 3118 -
Interest accrued on deposits and receivables
Related parties (Reter Note 38) - -
Others - - 03 73
t 5.480.99

5,09 63

Tutal

*Derrvative mstruments at tare vatue through profit or loss retlect the posttive change in tar value ot those foreign exchange torward contracts that are not designated in hedge

but are. nevertheless, mtended 1o reduce the level of foreign currency sk for expected sales and purchases

7. Other assets

Unsecured, considered good
Caprital advances 224113 31307 - -
Advances other than capital advances

Advance 1o suppliers - - 202 34 18152
Employees and other advances - - 1555 5373
Prepaid expenses 280.49 31437 1,647.49 1,446.95
Goods and Services Tax (GST) refund receivable - - 11,379 42
Batance with statutory * government authorities - - 1,650.21
2,521.62 627.64 14,894.71 13,034.94

Unsecured. Creditimpatred
Advances other than capiat advances
Advances to United Brewertes (Hotdings)

Limited 1,668 20 1,608 20 - -
Balance with statutory” government authorities - - 2.077.05 115522
Less: Provision for impairment of other asset (1.668.20) (1.668.20) {2.077.05) (1.15522)
Total 627.64 14,894.71 13,034.94

(a) There are no advances to directors or other otficers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or advances to firms or private comparnies,

respectively, in which any divector 15 a partner or a director or a member

authorities have denied and recalled refund of certain GST Credits and the Board of Directors of the company, based on the legal opinton. considered that the refunds are in

(b) The GST
accordance with the faw, the matter 1s currently sub-judice and no quantification 15 made
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8. Inventories
tvalued at fowear of cost and netreahsable valuey

Raw matenals and packing matersa

[meludes m mransit - INR 33 3o Lakhs (March 31,2023 INR 908 84 Lakhs))

Work-in-prouress
Firushed woods

Traded goods {mecludes m transit INR Nif (March 31

Total

Reter Note 19 for detaits of ¢

9. Trade receivables

Trade recewvables
Recenvables from velated parues (Reter Note 38)
Total

Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables
Seeured. considered good

Unsecured. considered good

2023 INR Nt Lakhs))
Stores and spares ficludes in transit INR 100,00 Lakhs t March 31,2023 INR 3103 Lakhs))

Trade Recevables which have siwnificant wicrease in credut nisk

Trade Recesvables - credit impaired

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Recervables which have sigmticant increase in credit risk

Trade Recewvables - creditimpaned

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31,2023

10029 39 13851 83
135702 196 73
Lool 49 1 850 al

250038 +.735 43
3,527 27 347930
16.855.85 24.113.96

32,000 96

07,439 85

8424 86 8.284 41

60.425.82 75,724.260
454403 407337
53881 10

71,8 89

1,657 03 tado ol
61,482.85 77,370.87
{1,037.03) (1.040.01)
60,425.82 73.724.26

(a) Trade recervables include concession‘subsidy receivable from the Government of India of INR 43 091 @1 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 INR 63.338 47 Lakhs)

(b} No debts are due from directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jomntly with any other person. Also. no debts are due from firms or private

companies. respectively. m which any divector 15 a partner or a director or a member

{c} Trade recervables from deaters (other than refated parties) are non-mterest bearing during normal credit period and are generatly on tenws of 15 w0 120 days Management s of the view

that there are no recervables imciuded above which have siunificant incres

ase in credit risk

(d) For terms and condiions refatmy to related party receivables. refer Note 38

(e) Trade recervables Ageiny Schedule

As at March 31, 2024

other than that already impaired as per management as

essment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Current but not & months — 1 -
N Less than 6 Months > 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Fowal
due year ; ’

. - 33.809 80 15234 49 8 39 093 31 47 S.426 54 5751182
Undisputed Trade Receivables — constdered goud ' ! :
Undisputed Trade Recervables - which have -
stgntfieant increase i credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit anpaned - - - - 1522 1,044 81 1.057.03
Disputed Trade recervables - considered good - - - - 291400 - 291400
Disputed Trade receivables — which have siumificant -
werease n credit risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 33,809 80 1523449 839 0.93 2.960.69 9 468 35 01,482 85

* Includes unbilled subsidy outstanding of INR 26,314 37 Lakhs

As at March 31, 2023

Qutstanding for followmng periods from due date of payment
Current but not & ths — 1 -
¢ MO ] ess than 6 Months | 0O | 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total

due** year 4

37376 42 26,574 89 136 56 20011 272017 3793 1t 7281026
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ considered zood Tl ® 3636 >
Undisputed Trade Recervables — which have - - - - - - -
sizniticant increase w credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - 1651 8902 1.541.08 Lodo.ol
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - 2.914.00 - 2.914.00
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant - - - - - - -
nerease i credi risk
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total 37.376.42 26,374.89 136.56 216.62 5.732.19 7,334.19 77,370.87

** Includes unbilted subsidy outstanding of INR 31,776 03 Lakhs

(1) Refer Note 19 tor details of charge
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10. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

= On carrent accounts

- On deposits accounts with oramal matunty of three mounths or less
Cash on hand
Total

Cash and cash eguivatem balances don 't melude any amounts which are not avabable for use by the Company

11, Other bank balances

Baok balances on unpad dividend accounts®
Bank deposits with orinal mature, of 12 months or fess but more than 3 montis
Marain money deposits

Total

* The Company can uulise these balances only lowards settlement ot respective unpaid dividend amounts

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

As at As at
March 31,2024 Marceh 31,2023
H 190 9 3302 00
17.730 00 20067500
203 220
27.942.94 32.979.95
142 9} 119 30
oo 6 32
3,543 51 3480 72
4,886.42 3.605.39

Non-current

Current

As at As at As at As al
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade recervables (Refer Note 9) - - 6423 82 75.724 20
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 10) - - 2704294 3297995
Other bank balances (Refer Note 11) - - 488642 3.4805 39
Others (Refer Note o) 5 547945 593620
Total 98.734.63 1.18.263.82
12, Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
F2.40.00.000 (March 31, 2023 12.40.00.000) equity shares of INR 10 cach 12,400.00 12,400 00
6,006,000 (March 31, 2023 6.00,000) 13°a redeemable cumulative preference shares of INR 100 cach [N 600 00

13,000.80 13,000.00
Issued shares
12,00,00044 (March 31, 2023 12.00,00,044) equity shares of INR 10 each 12.000.00 12.0006.00

12,000.60 12,000.60
Subscribed and fully paid-up shares
118515050 (March 31, 2023 11.85,13,130) equity shares of INR {0 each 11,851 52 11,851 52
Forfetted shares (amount orgmally paid-up) 3.35 335

11,854.87 11,854.87
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Nos. INR in Lakhs Nos INR in Lakhs

At the begimning of the vear 118515130 11851 52 11.8515,150 11,851 52
Changes during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,85,15,150 11,851,352 11,85,15,150 11,851,52

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one elass of equiy shares issued and paid-up having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is elimible for one vote per share The dividend

proposed by the Board of Directors 1s subject to the approval of the shareholders m the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of bgudation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recerve remainimy assets of the Company, after distnibution of all preferential amounts. The

dhistribmtion will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

7

{c} Details of shareholders holding more than 3% of the shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Nos. %a Nos. %%
Eguity shares of INR 10 _each fully paid
Zuari Agro Chemicals Linited
{Holdina Company) 6,40,28,362 34 03% 6,40,28 362 S403%
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{d) Details of Shares held by Promoters of the Company

As at March 31,2024

Promoter name

No. of sharves at the

beginning of the

Change

N No. of shares at the
during the

end of the year

“o of Total Shares

% change during

the vear

year year

Shradha Avarwala 200,000 - 2.00.000 0177 i 0%
Jyotsna Poddar 157152 - 137152 0137, 0002,
Gavrav Avanwala 1.50.000 - 1,50.000 0139, 0 0%
Akshay Poddar 102,431 - 1402431 1 18% 0000,
Zuart Agro Chemicals Linnted 0.40.28.362 - 04028 302 34030, 000%,
Adventz Finance Private Limited 43530301 - 4350301 307, 10,
United Breweries Holdings Linuted - - - 0000, 0000,
Kmgfisher Fivest India Limited - - - 0002, 0009,
Medowell Holdings Limited 1257180 - [EIEL RO
Zuan Industries Lomited o094 - 026, 0 N0
Total 7,18,531,686 - 7.18,51.686 60.63"%

As at March 31,2023

Promoter name

No. of shares at the
beginning of the

Change

. No. of shares at the
during the

end of the year

% of Total Shares

%5 change during
the vear

year year

Shradha Agarwala 2.00.000 - 2.00.000 D179 0000,
Ivotsna Poddar 137452 - 137,452 0.13% 4009,
Gaurav Agarwala 1.30.0i1) - 1.50.000 0132, 0009,
Akshay Podda 1218.503 183028 1402431 118% 0 15%,
Zuan Agra Chemicads Limsed 6.-40.28 362 - 64028362 5403%, 000%,
Adventz Finance Private Limited 4330301 - 3o7% 000y
United Breweries Holdings Limited - - - Q.00%, G000,
Kimatisher Finvest India Limited - - - 0.(H°o 0002
Medowell Holdimgs Linuted 12.57.186 - 1257180 1 06% 0.00%
Zuan Industries Limited 3.06.194 - 306,104 0200, G300
Total 7.16.67,758 1.83,928 7.18,51.686 60.63%%

As per records of the Company, the above shareholding represents fegal ownership of shares.

No shares bave been issued for constderation other than cash for a period of five vears immediately precedmg the reporting Jate

13. Other equity

Capital redem ption reserve

Balance as per last financial statenients

Changes durimy the year
Closing balance

General reserve

Balance as per last financial statements

Changes duning the year
Closing balance

Retained earnings*

Balance as per last financial statements

Add: Protit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive (loss)nconte

Less: Appropriattons

Final equity dividend {antount per share Re. .50 (Previous vear

Closing, balance
Total Other Equity

*Includes INR 5,721 21 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023

:Re. 1.20 per share)}

INR 3.762 19 Lakhs) refating to revaluation of property, plant and equipment

As at
March 31,2024

As at
arch 31,2023

480 78 480 78
480.78 480.78
338371 53857t
5.385.71 5,385.71

6239740

15,481 32

(54 19)
1,777.73 142218
76,247.06 62.597.46
82,113.55 68,463.95
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As at As at
March 371, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
Distribution made and proposed
Rividends on eguity_shares deciared and pand
Dividend for the year ended Macch 31,2023 Re 130 per share
3 1777 73 142218

(Previous year Re 1 20 per share)

1,777.73 1,422.18
Proposed dividends on equuy shares
Dividend tor the year ended March 31, 2024 Re d 30 per share 177773 V77773
(Previous vear Re |50 per share)

1,777.73 1.777.73
Proposed dividend on equity shares 1s subject t approval at the annual general meeting and 15 not recogmsed as a abihty as at yvear end
14, Non-current borrowings

As at As at
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Secured (at amortised ¢
Indran currency term loans from banks 3373509 44,887 30
Indran cutrency vehicle loans from bank 21540 5128
Total 35,951.18 44,938.78
Less: Amount disclosed under the head "Current
Borrowinas" (Refer Note 19) (6,070.22 {9271 23)

Noun-current borvowings 29.880.96

Secured borrowings

Indian currency term foans

Term loan troim a bank of INR 13,736 30 Lakhs (including current matunities of INR 2,424 47 Lakhs) [March 31,2623 INR 16.962.30 Lakhs (mcluding current maturities of INR 1 21202
Lakhs} carmies mterest m the range of @ 30% pato 10 43% pa [March 31,2023 993, pa to 1030% pa] The foan 1s repavable 1n 28 guarterly instaliments startimg from November
2023 with the fast wstalment due on August 2030 The loan 1s secured by ftrst pari-passu first charge on movable tixed assets 10 be created from proceeds of the taciiity for improvement in
Energy Efficiency Project of the urea plant. with other parncipating lenders and first pan passu charge over all movable and immaovable fixed assets of the Company excluding those

exclusively charged to other term lenders

Term loan trom a bank of INR 6,055 43 Lakhs (including current maturities of INR 103949 Lakhs) [March 31, 2023 {NR 7,103 09 Lakhs (including current matarities of INR 1,037 o0
Lakhs)] carries interest i the range of 1000 pat 1 30% pa {March 312023 10.00% pa to 1095 pa] The loan 1s repayable in 28 quarterly mstallments starung from March
ets (o be created out of the proposed Energy Efficiency Project.

2023 with the last mstalment due on December 2029 The loan 15 secured by first pan-passu first charge on att fixed

arge over alf movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company excluding the tixed assets charged specitically to the term lenders

with other parveipatig lenders and first part passu ch

Term loan from a bank of INR 3,203.40 Lakhs (including current maturities of INR 476,30 Lakhs) [March 31, 2623 INR 3,283.08 Lakhs {including current maturtties of INR [18.6]
Lakhs)] carries interest m the range of 9 80% pa to 11 20% pa [March 31. 2023 930% pa to 1035% p.a] The loan 15 repayable in 28 guarterly installments starting from January
2024 with the last instalment due on October 2030 The loan 1s secured by first pari-passu first charge on movable fixed assets to be created from proceeds of the facility for improvement
“tticiency Project of the urea plant, with other partcipatng lenders and first pari passu charge over movable and immovabie fixed assets of the Company excluding those

m Energy

exclusively charged to other term lenders

Term loan from a bank of INR 3,288.95 Lakhs {including current maturities of INR 870.09 Lakhs) [March 31, 2023 INR 3,931.39 Lakhs (includmg curremt maturities of INR 637 49
Lakhs)] carries interest in the range of 9.70% p.a. to 10.40% p.a. [March 31, 2023: 8.65% p.a. to 9 70% p.a.] The loan is repayable in I8 quarterly installments starting trom August 2023
with the fast istalment due on November 2027 The loan is secured by first pari-passu tirst charge over movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company. exctuding those exclusively

charged to other term {enders (including long term loans availed tor the energy efficiency capital expenditure)

Term loan tfrom a bank of INR 4,934 26 Lakhs (mcluding current maturities of INR 992 94 Lakhs) {March 31, 2023 INR 4.926 43 Lakhs (inciuding current maturities of INR Nil)] carries
interest rate in the range ot 8.95% p.ato 10.40% p.a [March 31, 2023 : 8.95% p.a] The loan 1s repayable in 11 quarterty installments starting trom Aprif 2024 with the last instalment due
secured by first par-passu first charge over movable and immovable fixed assets of the Company. excluding those exclusively charged 1o other tenm lenders

on July 2026 The loan 1s
(including long term loans availed for the energy efficiency capital expenditure)
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Ferm foan trom a bank of INR 2477 32 Lakhs Gmcluding current nuuntzes of INR 189 18 Lakhs) [March 31,2023 INR 2,470 32 Lakhs tnctuding curreat maturities o INR N careies
terest rate m the tange of 9 253% pa 1o 10 25% pa March 312023 9232 pa ] The foan s repavable m 13 quarterly mstaliments starting from September 2024 with the ast
stalment due on Mareh 2028 The foan 1s secured by first pan-passu first charge over mavable and immon able fived assets of the Company. excluding those exelusiely charged 1o othes

term lenders Gncluding tong term loans avarled tor the encrgy efficiency capital expenditure)

Term loan from a bank of INR NIL (metuding current maturities of INR NILy {March 31. 2023 INR 1,997 46 Lakhs (meludmg current matunities of INR 1,997 46 Lakhs)] carried nter
w the range of 8 007 pa. [March 312023 8 00% pa] The Joan was repavable i 20 equal quarterly mstallments staring trom Juae 2019 with the last instalment due on March 20

The loan was secured by Oirst par-pasu charge on all movable and immovable fived assets falongwith workmyg capital Tenders). other than fived assets exctusively charged w other fenders

24

Term loan from a bank of INR NIL (including current maturities of INR NTL) [Mareh 31, 2023 TNR 1,495 80 Lakhs tincludug current maturities of INR 1495 80 Lakhs)) carrred interest
i the range o' 9 8670 pa 10 10 80%0 pa [March 31,2023 9 30% pa 10 10 80% p a | The loan was repayable m 20 quatedy installments starting trom June 2019 with the last mstalment
due on March 2024, The loan was secured by first pan-pasu charge on all movable and immovable fived assets, both present and future (other than fixed assets exclusively charged 1o other

lenders)

Term loan from a bank of INR NIL tacluding cwrrent maturities of INR NIL) [March 312023 INR 2,717 41 Lakhs (ncluding current maturities of INR 2,717 41 Lakhs)] carried inter:
vate of 9 e pa {March 312023 900 % pa] The loan was repayable n monthly mstaliments starting from Aprd 2023 with the last mstalment due on February 2024 The loan 15

secured by first par-passu first charge over movable and immovable fived assets of the Company both present and future, excluding those exclusively charged to other term lenders

Indian cusreney velgle toans
Vehicle loans from a bank of INR 213 49 Lakhs (including current maturiiies of INR 3175 Lakhs) {March 31. 2023 INR 51 28 Lakhs tachading current maturities of INR 14 84 Lakhs)j
vable m 36 1o 00 monthly mstaliments startng from Julv 2018 wath the fast

carty iaterest at 8 83% pa o 935% pa [March 31, 2023 830% pa to 9357 pa] The loan s rep

instalment due on January 2029 and 15 secured by first par-passu charge on fixed assets tinanced by the sard term loans

I3, Lease Liabitities

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2024 Muarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
Lease hiabihues (Refer Note 33) 1.862 23 1.886 60 3007
1,862.23 1,886.60 36.07
16, Financial liabilities - Others
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial liabylities at far value through profit or oss
Derivatives not desiznated as hedges - - 480 2522
Fiancig labdiues at amortised cost
Liabaltties for capital goods - - 703 43 33772
Interest acerued but nat due on borrowings
and others - - 8203 32227
Security deposits - - 5.33983 524419
Payable to Gas pool operator - - 449205 3.11988
Employee benefits pavable - - 768 75 760 75
Other expenses payable - - 361838 2,064.02
Unpaid dividend* - - 142.91 119 40
Total - - 15,153.08 12,.820.50
*There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under the Companies Act. 2013 as at vear end
17. Provisions
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Provision tor employee benefits
Gratuity (Reter Note 27) 1,272.19 1,180.60 386 106.49
Compensated absences - - 1,089 .50 1.011.18
Total 1.180.60 1,093.42 1,117.67
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18. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
Asad As at For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Deterred tax habibiues
322522 12910061 30801 3036 55

Property. plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets 13,

and Intangible assets. lmpact of difference between

tax depreciauon and depreciation amartisatton

charged for the financial reporting

Others (27.29) 41 69
281.32 3,698.24
Deterred tax assets
Aflowance for doubttul recen ables RAERIY, (148.72) (220U
Atlowance for doubtful advances - 7848 -
Alowance for GST recevable 290 77 23203 (2 33)
Provision for gratuny and compensated absences 378 47 1693 3412
Lease Liabilny 491 39 (129 {30 39)
Others 173 91 H1e2 128 74
Minmmum Alternate Tax ("MAT") credic entitdfement 4 979 20 (4.184.44) 2380 74
(3.963.07) 2.655.08

Net deferred tax liability

Deferved tax charge /(credit) 4,246.39 1.043.16

Based on the protitabshity projections. the management rs confident that there would be sufficient taxable profits m future which will enable the Company to utifize the aforesard MAT credut

et have been recounised on the same Also Reter Note 31

entitdement. Accordingly. deferred tax

Reconciliation of movement in deferred tax liabilities (net)

Batance at the beznmnmy of the vear G, 149 80 340670
Tax charge(credit) during the year
Recommised 1in profit and loss 4.275.50 1.060 08

msed in OCE (29 11} (l692)
4.246.39 043 16
Balance at the end of the year 96.26 6,149.86

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

19, Current borrowings

ured borrowings

i curcency buyer's - suppliers' credit trom banks 10,931 19

Indian currency bills discounted with banks 3415733 L2373

Indian currency cash credit trom banks a15 -

Current maturities of long-term borrowinas (Refer Note 14) $.070.22 927123
71,158.89 1,00,099.37

Unsecured borrowings

Indsan currency short-term loans from banks 904 88 -

904.88 -
Total 72,063.77 1,00,0699.37

Secured borrowings

s¢ on all current assets (both present and tuture} and property. plant and equipment of the Company, excluding assets which are exclusively

The facilities are secured by first par-passu cha
charged to other lenders. These facitiies are repayable within 12 months pertod The mterest carned on these faciliies are - buyersisuppliers credits: 5 01% 10 58926 pa [March 31,2023
037105 58% pal, bills discounted 6 55%0 to 7 75% pa [March 31,2023 4 40% t0 7 50° p a ], cash credit 8.95% to 11 80% pa {March 31,2023 873% w0 t143% pa]

Unsecured borrowings

The short-term loans are repayable over a maturity period of 45 to 130 days and carry floating interest rate of 7 84% to 9.48% p.a [March 31,2023 1 8 530% 0 9.00% p.a ]

CANGALORE
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As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

20. Trade pavables

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of miero enterprises and smaltl enterprises (Refer Nowe 3o) {4150 4582 ab

- total sustanding dues ot creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13.802 30 19.674 70
1491741 24,257.36

Trade payables 1490417 20448 02
Trade payables to related parties {Refer Note 38) 1324 3.800 34
Total 14,917.41 24,257.36

Tlacludes vutstanding dues of wiers and small encerprises (Refer Wote 3o Tor dewils)
For explanatons on the Company s credit risk management processes. refer Note 41

Trade payables (other than related parties) are normally non-interest beartng and are settled on 30 to 20 days term. For Terms and condition for related parties refer note 38

Trade payables Auemg Schedule

As ot Mareh 31,2024

Qutstanding tor following perods trom due date of paviment

Less than }

Unbilled Not Due 1-2 vears 2.3 years Muove than 3 vears Total
year
Total outstanding dues of nucro enterprises and - L1444 - - - 067 [REERAI
smalt enterprises®*
Total eutstandmeg dues of creditors other than micra 423 48 13,041 33 313 34 031 7 38 1o a4 13,802 30

enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micra enterprises and small - - - - -
enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than nuicro - - - -
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 423.48 14,155.99 313.34 0.51 7.38 16.71 14,917.41
** Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises for more than 3 years of INR 067 lakhs pertains to interest provided in earlier years

As at March 31, 2023

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of pavment

. Less than 1
Unbilied Not Due > 1-2 vears ars More than 3 vears Total
year
Tortal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - 4,381 99 - - - 067 4,582 06
0.0
small enterprises® ¥
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 32576 18,940.27 38417 740 033 1675 19.674.70
enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of nucro enterprises and small - - - - - -
enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micra - - - - - .
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 325.76 23,522.26 384.17 7.40 035 1742 24,257.36
*EeOutstanding dues of nucro enterprises and small enterprises for more than 3 years of INR 0 67 lakhs pertams to mterest provided 1n earlier years
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

21, Other currvent liabilities

Statutory dues payable 278 48 33929
Contract habilities - Advances from customers®* 1.348 96 {60193
Total 1,627.44 1,941.22
**Revenue recognised trom amounts included in contract liabtlities at the begimning of the vear is INR 930.92 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : [NR 120371 Lakhs).

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Non Cwrrent Borrowings (Refer Note 14) 2483090 35.607.55 - -
36.07

Lease Laibilities (Refer Note 5} 1,862.23 1.886.60 5532

Current Borrowmgs (Refer Note 19) - - 72.063.77 1.060.099.37
Trade Pavables (Refer Note 20) - - 1491741 2425736
Others {Refer Note 16) - - 15,148 28 12.568 29
Total 31,743.19 1,02,184.78 1,36,961.09




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{AH amounts m Indian Rupees Lakhs, except as otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Muarch 31,2024 March 31,2023

22. Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of products mcluding concession subsidy on fertilisers)

Manutactured 3.18.879 33 34144433
Traded 60.342.90 2247112
219 532

Sale of services
Other operating revenues (scrap sales)
Total

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

Manufactured

Urea 1.81.580.89 17967773
Complex ferulizers 1.29.693 21 13283532
Others 7.599.23 8.931.06

3,18,879.33 3.41,444.33

Traded

Complex ferulizers 43611 14 19674 15
Murtate of Potash (MOP) 1292640 -
Others 1,805.36 2.796.97
64,342 90 22,471.12
(b) Timing of revenue recognition
Products transterred tor a pomt in time 3.79.541 87 304,146 .88
Services rendered at a point in time 229
3,79,544.16 3,64,
(¢} Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised with contract price
Revenue as per contracted price (including concession  subsidy on fertilisers) 3.90.580.44 3.72.027 40
Adjustments
Rebates (11.042.28) (7.875.00)
Revenue from contracts with customers 3,79,544.16 3,64,152.40

(d) Performance obligation
The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The
performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 135 to 120 days from delivery

The Direct Benefit Transter (DBT) Scheme entails 100% payment of subsidy to the Company on the basis of actual sales by the retailer to the beneficiary. however. the
pay 2 paiy ) 2
performance obligation of the Company is satistied upon delivery of the goods

(¢)  Sales of products include government concession < subsidies amounting 1o INR 2.51.026.70 Lakhs (Previous year: INR 268.770.17 Lakhs). The urea concession mcome
has been recognized based on the applicable extant policy guidelines. as per management esttmate in line with known policy parameters. pending finalizatton by the
Government of India ('GOL').

The subsidy income for phosphatic and potassic fertilisers under Nutrient Based Subsidy Policy has been accounted in line with the applicable extant poticy guidelines
notified by GOT from time to time. pending finalization by GO!

() Govemnment of India has notified the pooling of Gas in Fertiliser (Urea) sector effective trom June 2015, As per the notification, domestic Gas is pooled with Regasitied
Liguefied Natural Gas (RLNG) to provide natural Gas at uniform delivered price to all Natral Gas Grid connected Urea manufacturing plants.

tg) The Company had during the year ended March 31, 2021 recognised urea subsidy income of INR 2,914 Lakhs without benchmarking its cost of production using naphtha
with that of gas-based urea manufacturing units recently converted to natural gas, as notified by the Department of Fertilizers {DoF] for subsidy income computation.,
against which the Company had filed a writ petition against the DoF before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi [DHC]. Pending finalization of writ petition before the DHC,
s a pass through in subsidy computation, believes that artificial

the management, based on legal opinion and considering the fact that the energy cost is alwa
benchmarking s arbitrary and discriminatory and is confident of realisation of the aforesaid subsidy income,

(h) For details of contract balances, refer Notes 9 and 21. Also refer Note 39 for segment information,
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23. Other income

[nterest mcome on bank deposits and others
Rental nicome

surance claim received

Provisions no longer required written back*
Other non-operating meome

Total

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

350

* Includes Provision for impairment of GST credit of previous years reversed INR Nil Lakhs [Previous vear- INR 37 (4 Lakhs] and Provision for Impairment of Trade
Recievabe reversed Rs. 389,58 Lakhs [Previous year - Provision for impairment of Trade Receivable written back INR 90 64 Lakhs]

24, Cost of materials consmned

fnventories at the begning of the vear
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Cost of materials consumed

Materials consumed
Natural Gas
Phosphoric acid
Imported ammonia
Others

Total

25. Purchases of traded goods

Complex fertilizers
Muriate of Potash (MOP)
Others

Total

26.Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods
Traded goods
Work-in-progress

Less: Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods
Traded goods
Work-im-progress

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods

27. Emplovee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity expense {refer note (i) helow]

Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note (i) below]
Staff welfare expenses

Total

For the year ended
March 31,2024

13.851 83
1.81.666 74
10.029.59

1,85,488.98

86.801 43
62.091 83
16,455.75
20.139.95

34.425.00
H.214.78
1.312.21

47,051.99

1 850,61
173543

196 73
6.782.77

1.o91.49

250.38
1,357.12
3.298.99
3,483.78

5.929.10
181 66
42493
247 20

6,782.89

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

2039517
19308218
13851 83

1,.99,62

7842153
62988 49
30,591 70
21.623.80

22.862.00

2.951.56

18.439 38
15049
3327
18.625.14

1,830.61
473543
196 73
6.782.77
11,842.37

6.078.43
149.99
41990
2068 86

6,917.18

(1) The Company operates defined benefit plan i.e., grawity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 13 days of last drawn salary for each completed vear of service. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees who is

responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.
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The followinyg table summarises the components of net henefit expenses and the funded status for the plan

For the vear ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

(&) Cost charged o the statenent of profit or loss under employee cost

Current service cost 85.71 84.41
Interest cost 101.82 101.07
Return on plan assets (5.73) 19.135)
Net employee benefit expense 181.80 176.33
(b Re-measurement (foss) gam recognised m other comprehensive income
Actuarial (loss ) gam
Change in financial and demographic assumptions 4987y 1104
Experience variance tactual vs assumption (37.12) (3714
Actuanal {10ss) on assets 3.09 12.32)
Net actuarial (loss)/gain {83.30) (48.42)

(¢} Changes in the present value of the detined benetit obhigation

Obligations at begmning of the year 1.363 84 139512
Current service cost 3374 8441
[iterest cost 101.82 10107
Benetits paid (13544 (262.80)
Actuarial (loss) 8699 46.10
Obligations at end of the vear 1,363.84
(d) Change in tair value ot plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 76.75 12634
Return on plan assets 573 9.135
Contributions during the vear 276.14 206 .44
Benefits paid (13544 (262.86)
Actuarial {loss) 3.69 32)
Plan assets at end of the yvear 206.87 76.75
(e) Benefit asset/{liability)
Fair value of plan assets 206.87 76.75
1.48292 1.363.84

Less: Present value of detined benefit obligations

Benefit (liability) (1,276.05)

(£} Major category of plan assets included 1n fair value of plan assets

(1,287.09)

Fund balance with insurance companies 206.87 76,75
Total 206.87

(g3 The prmcipal assumptions used in determimng gratuity obligations for the Company plan are as shown below:

Discount rate 7.20%
6.50%0-8.00%

Salary increase rate
1.00%6-3.00%

Employee turnover

T.A45%

6.50%-8.00%
1.00%-3.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of imflation, seniority. promotion and other relevant factors. such as supply and
demand in the emplovment market. The overall rate of return on assets is determined based on the market price prevailing on that date. applicable to the period over which

the obligation is to be settled.
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¢ Al amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

iy A quantitative sensitiviy analysis for stgmificant assumption 15 as below

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Iucrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Impact on defined benetit obligation
Discount rate ( + - 0.3%) (64 63) 70.23 (3751 6243
Salary increase rate (~ - 0.3%) 6998 {64.99) 6225 157 80
Emplovee turnover (- - 30%, of attrition rates) 4.81 (338) 6.08 (0.82)
Mortality rate (= - 10%0 of mortality rates) 023 (0.25) 031 1031

The sensitvity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable change in key

assumptions oceurrmg at the end of the reporung period

(1} The following pavments are expected contribution to the defined benefit plans in future vears

Within next 12 months
Between 210 5 years
Between 6 to 10 years
More than 10 years
Total

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period vear is 9 years (March 31, 2023 9 years)

(1) Contribution to provident and other funds includes the tfollowing defined contributions

Provident fund

Superannuation fund and nattonal pension scheme
Others

Total

28. Finance costs

Interest expense

Interest on Income Tax

Interest on Leases (Refer Note 33)

Exchange difference regarded as adjustment to borrowing cost
Other borrowing costs

Total

29. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Amortisation of mtangible assets

Total

For the year ended
March 31,2024

260.35
156.07

8.51
42493

8.816.01
80.00
19824
141,14
1.257.60

10,492.99

6.990.24
11737
50.16

18325
33610
424 .80
2.132.50
3,296.71

For the year ended
March 31,2023

20443
144.72

10.75
419.90

1.734.960

1043776

5,802.28
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34. Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares
Power. fuel and water
Bagzgig and other contracting charges
Trausportation
Repatrs and maintenance
Buildings
Plant and equipment
Others
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Travelling and convevance
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment
Impairment of capital work in progress
Provision for impairment of other

assels
Director's sitting fees

Auditors remuneration (refer details below)
CSR expenditure (refer note 37)

Foreign exchange diftferences inet)
Miscellancous expenses

Total

Pavment to Auditors

As_Auditor

Statutory audit fee

Limited review fee

I other capacity

Certification fees

Others tincluding reimbursement of expenses)

Total

31. Tax expenses

Income tax related to items charged or eredited to statement of profit and loss during the year,

Profit and loss section

Current tax (Minimum Alternate Tax)

Deferred tax charge/(credit)
MAT credit utilisation:(accumulation)
Deferved tax charge for prior years
Deferred tax credit on others

Total

Deferred tax expense for the year includes deferred tax charge/(credit) relating

Company

Other comprehensive income

Deterred tax (credit)/charge on re-measurement of defined benefit plan

Total

Reconciliation of tax expense with accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate:

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax as per statutory income tax rate of 34 94%; (Previous perod: 34.94%)

Non-deductible expenses tor tax purposes
CSR expenditure
Deferred tax charge for prior vears
Other non-deductible expenses

Impact of change in tax rate for future period*

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss account

Effective tax rate

For the year ended
March 31,2024

P01 38
70,109 .30
1.026.08
1342050

149 306
3.173.53
69031
172,60

1318
798 11
25822
57778
12020
23305

23 85

~ e
[

o -3
[

99}

N
3
a

7
3

539.5¢
3.000.03
99,144.94

1700
9.00

9.00
3.75
38.73

4.310.00

1.184.44

91.00

8,585.5

For the year ended
March 38,2023

892 30
66,386 91
775 04

S0082

13044
3975
62901
478 43

148
796 40
245 14

321 90

1

)
3356
2H000
1.800.69
2.804 .90

g 1o
o
vy

89,010.54

17.00
975

6.00
0.81
33.56

3.077.00

(2,580, 74

(1.25)
3.642.07
+4,137.08

to prior year recogmzed towards true-up adjustment on filing of income tax returns by the

(29.11) (1692}
29.11) (16.92)
24,067.02 17,602.59
8.409.98 6,131.05
13192 7338

- (1.25)

37.04 22382
(13.44) (2.309.92)
8,585.50 4,137.08
35.67% 23.50%

* Management has assessed the utihzation of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on the basis of tuture profitability projections. Further, the management also assessed it to be
probable that post utilization of MAT the Company will be exercising option to pay Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisionsiconditions defined in the new Section

F13BAA 1n the Income Tax Act, 1901, inserted vide the Taxation Laws {Amendment) Ordinance 2019,
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For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
32. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the protit and share data used in the basic and dituted EPS computation
Net profit attributable 1o equity shareholders 15.481.52 1346551
Weighted average number of equity shares considered for caleulating basie difuted £PS 11.85.15.150 118515150
Earnings per share (Basic/Diluted) 13.06 1136

33. Leases

The Company as a lessee
The Company has lease contracts for tand. buildings and tanks. The leases for land generaliy have lease terms between T to 30 years, while others generally have fease terms
aung and

between | to 6 vears. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s utle w the leased assets. Generally, the Company 15 restricted trom a
sub-leasing the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options, which are further discussed betow

The Company also has certain leases with Jease termis of 12 months or less and feases with fow value. The Company applies the “short-term lease” and “tease of fow-value
assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases

Refer Note 3B for details of carrying amounts of right-ot-use assets recogmised and the movements during the year. Set out befow are the carving amounts of lease habilities

tnchuded under interest-bearmy borrowings) and the movements durmg the year

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
192267 211375

At the begining of the year
Additions 4047
[eases termunated - (137.49)
Acceretion of tnterest 198.24 202.05

Payvments ( 64)
At the end of the vear 1,922.67
Current 3332 36.07
Non-current 1.862.23 1.886.60
The matunty analysis of lease liabtlites are disclosed in Note 4 1(¢). The following are the amounts recognised m the statement of profit or loss
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 11737 11194
Interest expense on lease labilities 198.24 202.05
472.60 478 43

Expense refating to short-term leases (inctuded in rent expense)

Total amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss 788.21 792.42

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 710.43 Lakhs (Previous year: INR 714.07 Lakhis). The Company also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and

es
lease liabilities of INR 40.47 Lakhs (Previous year: Nil)

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination opuions. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility i managing the
leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business nceds. Management exercises sigmificant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination
options are reasonably certam to be exercised.

The ettective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9% 10%, with maturity between 2024-2042

There are no future rental payments refating o periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term
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Expense refating to leases of fow-value assets
Expense relatmg to short-term leases
Vartable lease pavments

For the vear ended
Mavch 31, 2024

29 30
443 .30
471.60

For the year ended
March 31,2023

7867
399 76
478.43

Total Lease Payments not considered as Lease pavments under Ind AS 116

The Company as a fessor

The Company has entered mito cancellable operating leases m respect of a portion of 1ts land and buildmg. These feases have terms of between 10 years and above The leases
include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailimg market conditions. The total rents recogmsed as income during the
period 1s INR 9519 lakhs (Previous vear: INR 11230 Lakhs).

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
Mareh 31,2024

34. Capital and other commitments

(a)  Estmated amount of contract remaining to be executed (net of capital advances) on capital account 19,703 49 322519
and not provided for
by For commitments relating to fease arrangements. reter Note 33
35. Contingent liabilities
(a)  Claims agamst the Company not acknowledged as debts
[ncome tax 338.04 358.04
£ e duty 63896 63890
Entry tax 382.70 38270
Customs duty 499 63 12470
Service tax 1549 1549
Others 2830 33.00
The income tax matters under appeal include certain deductions claimed by the Company for financial years 2012-13 and 2013-14 which have resulted in tax losses. on
which deferred tax assets have been recognized and utilized against taxable profits of tollowing vears, which have been disallowed by the income tax authorities and the
differential tax habiliey (deferred tax  regular tax) that may arise is estimated to be INR 3.313 Lakhs and interest thereon. The Company s comtesting aforesaid
disallowances and the managenient, based on independent tax opinions, believes that its position will Iikely be upheld i the appellate process and accordingly no expense
has been acerued in this regard
The Company is contesting aforesaid demands and the management. based on advise of its advisors. believes that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process
No expense has been acerued i the financial statements for these demands vaised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedimgs will not have
a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above
contingent liabilities.
Tn additon. the Company is subject to legal proceedings on indirect tax matters relating to subsidy. NBS reasonability guidelines notified from time to time and the
assessment thereof. The Company’s management does not expect adverse outcome on these which may have a matertal impact on the tfinancial statements.
(b)  Other money tor which the Company is contingently liable

Bank guarantees 105816 904.23
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36. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006

The principal amount and the mterest due thereon remaming unpard t any supplier as at the end of each

accountmnyg vear

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises*

- Interest due on above
- Total

*Excluding lrabilities for capital goods of INR 307 28 Lakhs (March 31,2023 - INR 133 08 Lakhs)

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the

amonnts of the pavment made to the supplier bevond the appomted day during each accounting vear

[he amount ot interest due and pavable tor the penod of delay in makimg payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED Act. 20006

The amount of mterest accrued and remaintng unpaid at the end ot cach accounting pertod-vear

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even i the
when the interest dues as above are actually pard o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance

as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

The information given above is to the extent such parties have been identified by the Company on the basis of information disclosed by the suppliers

37. Details of CSR expenditure

a)  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company durimy the year

b)  Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

¢)  Amount spent
1} Construction/acquisition of any asset
i) On purposes other than (i) above

d)  Details related to spent * unspent obligations:
1} Amount speit
1) Unspent amount  relation to
- Ongoing project
- Other than ongoing project
Total

Details of excess amount spent

suceeeding years. until such date

For the year ended
March 31,2024

111444
0.07

1L 1IS.11

.07

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

280.80

280.80

377.52

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

4.581.99
0.67

4,382.66

0.67

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

20071

20971

210.00

210.00

210.00

In case of S. 135(5) Excess amount spent

Opening Balance

Amount required to be spent during the
year

Amount spent
during the year

Closing Balance

i
%)

280.80

7752

[9%}

9725
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38. Related party disclosures

Names of related parties

Names of related parties where control exists rrespecuve of whether wansactions have oceurred or not

Holdwg Compamy

Commaon control

Promoters Promoters Group

Naines of other refated parties with whom transaction

Key Management Personnel

Diectors

Enterprises m wlhich

directorsshareholders are interested

Employee benefit trusts

Zuart Agro Chenweals Linuted CZACL)

Paradeep Phosphates Linwted (' PPLT)
Zuart Management Services Linted ("ZMSL™y

Zuart FarmHub Limued 7
Zuart Maroe Phosphates Provate Limited ("ZMPPL™)

Zuart Industries Limited

Adventz Finance Private Linuted
MeDowell Holdings Lunited
Unned Brewenies Holdings Limsted
Kingfisher Fivest India Limited
Mrs Jyotsna Poddar

Mirs Shradha Agarwala

Mr Gauray Agarwala

s have taken place durng the vear

Mr Nitin Maneuesh Kantak Whofe-time Divector

My Shubhabraty Saha. Managimg Dicector (ull 03 11 2022y

Mr T M. Murahdharan. Chief Financial Officer

My Vijayamahantesh Khannur, Company Secretary (1 31 07 2023)
Mr Vighneshwar G Bhat. Company Secretary (we £ 20 10 2023

My Akshay Podda

M DA Prasanna

Mrs. Rita Menon (ull 28 07 2023)

Mrs. Kiran Dhingra (we 1 1007 2623)
Mr Dipankar Chatterpz {ull 13 03 2022)
Mr Marco Philippus Ardeshur W
M Njun Manguesh Kantak {Non-Execuuve Director 0t 02.11.2022)
My Sabaleel Nandy (w e 103 11,2022 ull 25.03 2023)

Mr N Suresh Krishnan (w e i 23.03 2023)

dia

Lionel India Linuted (“LIL™)

MCF Lid Emplovees Gratuny Fund Trust ("MCF Gratuiy Trust”y
MCF Ltd Employees Superannuation Trust ("MCF Superannuation Trust")

Summary of transactions entered mio with related parties during the period

Holding Company

Common control

Key Management Persounel

Others including Promoters &

and Directors

Promoters Group

March March March March March March March March
31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023

Sale of gouds tnet
ZFL - - 580345 6.991 03 - - - -
PPL - - 114 89 - - - - -

- - 5918.34 6,991.03 - - - -
Purchase of soods {net
ZFL - - 9% 89 3520 - - - -
PPL - - 12,302,530 3.097 12 - - - -
ZMPPL - - 1.910.00 - - - - -

- - 14,309.39 3,732.41 - - - -
[nterest income
ZACL 748.18 74348 - - - - - -
ZFL - - 029 3.33 - - - -

748.18 743.48 0.29 3.33 - - - -

ZMSL - - 100 82 §9.98 - - - -

- - 100.82 89.98 - - - -
Travel expenses pard
LIL - - - - - - 141.93 5032

- - - N - - 141,93 60.32
Rewmbursement of expenses by the Company
ZFL - - - 14.48 - - - -
PPL - - 18.62 225 - - -
Adventz Finance Private Linuted - - - - - 746

- - 18.62 16.73 - - - 7.46
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Holding Company Common control

Key Managenent Personnel
and Directors

Others including Promtoters &
Promoters Group

March

312023

March

31,2024

March
31,2024

March

31,2003

March March

31,2024 3), 2023

March March

il 2024 31,2003

Rennbursentent wf expenses to the Company

ZACL
ZF1
PP

hay Poddar
M DA Prasanna

Mr Dipankar Chatterp
Mr Suresh Krishuan
AMs Rita Menon

NMr Marco Wadia

Afr Niun M Kantak
Me Sabaleel Nandy
Ms Kiran Dhingra

Directors’ Remuneration
M Akshay Poddas

Mr DA Prasanna

Mr Suresh Keishnan
Ms Rita Menon

Mr Marco Wadia

N Nstn M Rantak

Ms Kiran Dhingra

Dividend pard on gquity shares
ZACL

Adventz Finance Private Limited
Zuar Industries Liuted
MeDowell Holdings Lomited
Mys Jvotsna Paddar

Mrs Shradha Agarwala

My Gaurav Aganvala

Mi Akshay Poddar

M D A Prasanna

Mr Suresh Krishitan

My Vigayamahantesh Khannuwr
Mr Niun M Kantak

M T M Murahdharan

Contrtbutions made
MCF Gratiey Trust
MCF Superannuation Trust

5.00 300

500 500

540 -

H S

300 4350
2

bod

v
e
o e}
n
™
[
e
]

D43

2004 15.0
017 [EN]
0.02 -
- 000
001 Qal

b

960.43 768.34 - -

96.31 77.05

21000
7193

280 25

7442

282.53

354.67

Compensation of key management personnel*

Short-term employee benefits

Past-employment granuty and medical benefits

Termmation henetits
Share-based pavnent transactions

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

*The amounts disclosed above are the amounts recogmised during the reporting perrod related o key management personnel

March
31,2023

March
31, 2024

33902 57679

339.92 576.79

As the habibties for gratuity and

compensated absences are provided on an actoarsal basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaming to the key management personnel is not ascertamable and.

therefore, not included above

Summary of balances as at period/year end

Holding Company Common control

Key Management Personnel
and Directors

Others including Promoters &
Promoters Group

March March March March March March March March
312024 31,2023 31. 2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023
Interest receivable
ZACL 5,096 63 4,348 43 - - - - - -
5,096.63 4,348 45 - - - - - -
Trade receivables
ZACL 8,038 30 8.003.00 - - - - - -
ZFL - - 386.50 230.81 - - - -
8,038.36 8,003.60 380.50 280.81 - - - -
Trade payables
PPL - - 003 3.808.39 - - - -
ZMSL - - - - - - 1031 -
LIL - - - - - - 290 0.94
- - 0.03 3.808.39 - - 13.21 0.94

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions for sale and purchases with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those prevarling in arm's length transactions. The outstanding receivable
payable balances are generally unsecured and iterest 1s charged as per terms agreed with the related parties. There have been no guarantees provided or received tor any

related party receivables or payables
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39, Segment infornudion

The Company s engaged 0 the manutacture. sale and oadig ot ferufrzers which die management has considered as smgle bustness operatng segment Further, the

Company operates in India and caters o the needs of only domestie market Aceordinghy. no turther disclosures are required

Lakhs (Previous perad  INR 26877017 Lakhs) ansioe dom the
¥ E

Revenue Gom swgle customer e Gosernment of {ondia amounted 1o INR

concesstonsubsidy on terudzers

tthe

40, The Board of Drirectors of the Company at tts Meetng held on February 7. 2024 have. mter aha, approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement amont
| E ) pr | L

Company. Paradeep Phosphates Linited ¢ 230110 232 and other apphicable provisions ot the Compamies Act, 2013

vead with the cules tramed thereunder. subject to approval consent sanction from shareholders. creditors

ansferee Company ™ or "PPLTY. under Sections

and other apphicable regulatory authortties including
Hon ble National Company Law Tribunal The Scheme provides for Amalgamation of the Company into the Transferece Company as a going concern with effect
from the Appomted Date 1e Apnl 12024

41. Financial instruments fuir value measurement

A assets and habiiues tor which far value 1s measured or diselosed in the Ind AS financial statements are categonised withmn the fair value hierarchy . as below. based

on the fowest level imnput that 13 sizmiticant to the tan value measurement as a whole

r
-

Quoted tunadjusted) market prices i actve markets for wenucal assets or habilities
Valuauon techmiques tor which the lowest fevel mput that s signiticant to the farw value measurement ss directlv or indirectly observable

5o«
2 2
& A
T

Valuation techniques tor which the lowest level mput that 1s significant to the far value measurement 1s unobsers able

The G value messurement hierarchy ot the Company’s assets and habibues 1s as below

Carrying amount Fair values
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
March March March March March March March March
31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 312023 31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023
Financial assets measured at fair value
Dernvatives not designated as
hedges 134 20 61 - - 1.54 2001 - -

Financial assets for which faiv values wre disclosed

Trade receivables 60,4235 82 - - 60425 82 75724 20 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 2794299 - - 27,942.94 3297993 - -

Other bank balances L) - - 42 3405 39 - -

Security deposiis S94.71 - - 74 594 7t - -

Rebate ~ discount recervable from

suppliers 23540 0383 - - 23510 938 31 - -
Other receivable 8197 51896 . ; 4397 518 %0 B }

Interest acerued on deposits and

others S0t 38 4,499 33 - - 3,160 38 4,499 03 - -

Carrying amount Fair values
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
March March March March March March March March
312024 32023 31,2024 312023 31,2024 31,2023 31,2024 31,2023

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

Derivatives not designated as

hedges 4.80 25224 - - 4.8 23221 - -
Financial liabilities for which fair values are disclosed

Borcowings FOT944 73 135, 700.92 - « 10194473 1.35,766.92 - -

Lease Liabshues 1917 535 102207 - - 1,917 35 192247 - -

Trade payables 14917 41 2423736 - - 14917 41 24257 36 - -

Liabihty for capital goods 703 43 33772 - - 703 43 33772 - -

Interest accrued on borrowings 8293 32227 - - 8293 327 - -

Security deposits 533983 5244 19 - - 5,339 83 5,244 19 - -

Payable to Gas pool operator 449203 3,119.88 - - 4,492.03 3,119.88 - -

Other payables 4,330 04 354423 - - 4,530.04 354423 - -

essed that

ed on derived mark-to-market values. The management has

There has been no transfers between levels during the year The tair vatues of denivauves are ba
the carrying values of financial assets and tinancial liabilities for which tair values are disclosed, reasonably approximate then tar values because these instruments have
short-term matur es

Borrowings include Indian currency and Foreign currency long-tenm toans wherein mterest rates are linked to benchmark rates {Marginal Cost of Lending Rates/ Prime
Lending Rates) of respective lenders. These benchmark rates are determined based on cost of funds of the lenders. as well as. market rates The benchmark rates are
peniodically revised by the lenders to retlect prevalent market condittons. Accordingly, etfective cost of debt for borrowmgs at any pont of tome 15 11 lime wath the
prevalent market rates. Due to these reasons, management is of the opruon that they can achieve refinancing, if required, at similar cost of debt, as current effective
interest rates. Hence, the discounting rate for catculating the fair value of Borrowings has been taken in line with the current cost of debt
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42. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s prineipal tinancral labihoes comprise bortowinus. trade and other pavables The main purpose of these inancial habshuies 15 to finance the Company s
operations The Company s principal tinancial assets melude nvestments. trade and other recervables. cash and cash equivalents, bank balances. security deposits and

derivauves that are out of regular busmess operatons

ment of these risks The Company s nisk

The Company 13 exposed to market cisk. credut risk and hquidity risk: The Company s sentor management sversees the nuan,

management s carned out by a treaswry department under poheies approved by the Board of Directors The Board of Directors provides written principles tor overall nisk

managentent. s well as palicies covenng speaitic areas. such as forergn exchange ask. mterest rate risk. credit sk, use of dervaave financial mstruments and non-
dernvauve tinancial mstraments, and mvestment of excess tiguadiy
(a) Viarket risk

Market nisk s the sk that the far vatue of future cash flows of a financial mstrument that will uctuate because of changes m market prices Market nisk conmprises thiee
wpes of risk re mterest rate nisk, currency sk and other price nsk, such as commodity nsk Fancial insruments aftected by market cisk melude borrowines

dervatives financial mstruments and trade payables
o lterest rate risk

Interest rate risk s the risk that the tar value or futare cash flows of the Compam s fimaneial mstruments will flucwate because of changes n market interest rates The
gs with floating imerest vates. The tollowimg table

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes m market iterest rate relates prmanly o the Company's borrown

demaonstrates the sensttivity to a rexsonably possible change w mterest rates on borrowings aftected With all other vanables held constant. the Company’s profit before
follows

ct of dervanves nat desianated as hedues.

tax s attected through the impact on floating rate borrowings. without considermg imps

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
0.5% increase  0.5% decrease  0.3% increase  0.5% decrease

INR Borrowings (4 )7) 433507 (300 96) 300 96
USD Borrowings (54 66) 54 00 (177 87y 17787

1 orergn cirrency risk

Foreran currency nisk s the risk that the tar vadue or tuture cash flows of an exposure witl fluctuate because of changes m toreign exchange rates The Company's

expusure to the nisk of changes in foretan exchange rates relates prumardy to the Campany’'s foreign curreney botrowings and trade pavables. The summary of derivative

mstruments and unhedued foretgn currency exposure 65 as below

Denvatives (not desionated as hedyes) outstanding as at the reporting date

Type Currency March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Foreign INR in Lakhs  Foreign currency INR in Lakhs
curiency m Lakhs
i Lakhs

Forward contracts UsSD 84 a4 7.059 04 33374 20067 04

Un-hedued forewn currency exposure as at the reporing date

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rebate * discount recervable trom suppliers 235100 938.31
Other recesvables 83 97 3401
Borrowinus 3.872.45 7.267 09
16 049 046,03

Trade payables

The tollowing tables demonstrate the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. with all other variables held constant and without considering
t

wnpact of derivatives not designated as hedues
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
S% increase 3% decrease 3% increase 5% deereuase
Im on profit before tax
UsD 1178.29) 17820 {340.69) 346.09




Mangilore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
CAamwounts i Indian Rupees Lakhs, exeept as otherwise stated)

. Conodiny price yisk
The Company’s operatung activities requure the ongomy purchase of natural was Natwral gas bemny mternasonal commaodity 1s subject o price Nuctuation on account off

the change w the crude o prices. demand supply pattern and exchange rate Qucteations The Company 15 not attected by the price volaulny of the natural gas as under

the Urea pricmyg formula the cost of natural 2as 15 pass through 1 the consumption of natural 2as 15 within the penmissible norm for manufacturimg ar Urea

The Company deals i purchase of mported ferulizers (e L DA and MOP) which are iported by the Company and sofd in the domestse market: The impaort prices of’
these goods are governed by the internavonal prices There 1s a poce and matertal v alabalny visks wlineh may not beim hne 1o meet the domestie market requirenent

The sk s atso wath domestre manutacturers whose costing 1s based on magorly rported vaw materials and small value-add However, a dynamie abgnment ot

procurement to sales and constant review of market conditions and competitors costing help v mitgating the unpact

The Company also deats m purchase of imported raw matenials (e P203 Ammoma and Urea) which are imported by the Company and used m the manufactunng ot

NP The import prices of these matenals are zoverned by mtemational prices. There 15 a price and matertal avalabihty risk

{b) Credit risk

sttons The Company’s expasure w credit nisk arises

ult on i ol
are mostly with government authorities and scheduled banks and

of fass that mav anse on owtstanding fmancial mstruments of a counterparty de

Credit tiskoas the

majorly from wade and other receivables Other financial assets hike secunty deposits and bank deposits

cotto these financial assets

henee, the Company does ned expect any creditnsk witviesp
Trade Receivables
The Trade recenvables can be classified mto two categories. from the customers and from the Government in the form ot substdy concesston The concession subsidy

vecenvable classified under trade recervables amounting to INR 45091 91 Lakhs March 31,2023 INR 63,338 47 Lakhs) s recenvable from the Government of India i
2023 INR

the torm of subsidy and being ot soveraign nature credit risk 1s not perceived. The receivables trom customers also include INR 8424 86 Lakhs {March 31,
3,241 41 Lakhsy recenvable from related party on which management does not expect any challenge m reabisaton. Fuither. as per terms agreed with related partes.

mterest 1s also charged on the overdue balunces

From market receivables from customers, the Company extends eredit to customers in the nonmal course ot business. The Company considers factors such as credit rack
record i the avarket and past dealings for extending credit to customers. The Company momitors the track record of the pavinents by the customers and the recervables
are regularly momtored The Company evaluates the concentratton of nsk with respect 1o trade recervables as fow. smee the customer base 15 large and tocated m several
jurisdictions and operate m largely mdependent markets The Company has also tken securny deposits fron its customers, which nuugate the credit nisk to some extent
The maximum expasure to ceedit risk at the reporting date 15 the carryimg value of cach class of Ninancaal assets disclosed m Note @ The Compamy holds coltateral as
secunty for many of 1ts customers At March 31, 2024, 9 496 (31 NMarch 20230 13 453%0) of the Company's trade receivables from customers are covered by collateral

security

5. The proviston rates are based on days past due tor

An imparrment analysis 1s pertormed at the reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit toss
aroupings of varous customer seaments with similar loss patterns 1 e . by geograptucal rewion. product type. customer type and raong) The calculation retlects the
probability-weighted outcome, the ume value of money and reasonable and supportable mformauon that s available at the reporting date about past events, current

conditrons and torecasts of future econonue condiions

Reconciliation of provision toe doubtful debts and other assets

As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment of Trade receivable
Balance at the begmning of the year 1,040,061 1.737.25
Add: Provision made duning the year -
Less. Reversat of earfier years provisions (389 38) (90 64
Balance at the end of the vear 1,057.03 1,646.61
Impairment of Other assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 115522 119220

924 83 -

Add Provision made duriny the year

Less: Provision reversed during the year - (37.04)

Balauce at the end of the year 2,077.05 22
[mpairment of Other financial assets

Balance at the begimmng of the year - -
Add: Provision made during the year 31182 -
Less: Provision reversed during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 311.82 -




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2024
(A amounts i Tndian Rupees Lakhs. except as otherwise stated)

(¢} Liquidity risk

The Company s objectve 5 0 mamtam optmum levels of ligadity to meet s cash and collateral requirenients at all umes. The Company relies on a nux of borrowing

and exeess operating cash flows o meet 1ts needs for funds The current comnutted hines o credit are sufticient o meet us shert o medium long term expansion need

The Company manstors rothimg foreeasts of its hguidity requirements to ensure 1t has sutTicient cash o meet operational needs white mamtanung surfictent headroom on

115 wrdrnwn commuued barcowing facthtes at all tmes sa tha the Company does nat breach barrowing lmts or covenants (where apphicabley on any of its borrowing

facilities

The table below summarises the maturiy protile of the Company s financaal habihities on undiscounted basis

Maturities

Upto 1 1-3 3-3 Above 5 Total

vear vears vears vears
March 31 2024
Non-eurrent borrowtngs HY7G22 14878 7o 2.850.59 345002 3595108
Lease habiftties 247 21 47930 47014 3180 0l 438312
Current borcowings 63993 33 - - - 03,993 33
Trade payables 1491741 - - - 14.917.41
Other finanaial abthues 15,133 08 - - - 15,133 08
Total 102,388 .47 15.357.96 10,320.69 8,338.23 1.36.398.34
March 31, 2023
Non-current borrowings 927123 1332923 1275551 R RED 44838 78
Lease habilwies 23163 17082 337300 433783
Current horrowings Q01828 14 - - - U828 14
Trade payables 24.257 30 - - - 24.257 30
Other tinancial habihues 12,820 50 - - - 12.820 50
1otal 1.37,408.86 14,291.33 13.226.33 12.433.89 1.77.382.61

43, Ratio Amalvsis and its elements

Ratio

Numerator

Denominator

As at
March 31,
2024

As at
March 31,
2023

Y change

Reason for variance above 23%, as
per Schedule HE requirement

Current ratio

Debt- Equity Ratia

Debt Service

Coverage ratio

Return on Equity
rauon

tventory Turnover
ratio

Trade Receivable
Turnover Ratio
Trade Payable
Turnover Rauo

Net Capital Tumover
Rato

Net Profit ratio

Return on Capital
Employed

Current Assets

Total Debt

Earnmys tar debt service =
Net profit after taxes “ Non-

cash operating expenses

Net Profits after taves —
Preference Dividend
Cost of goods sold

Net credit sales = Gro
credit sales ~ sales return

Net credit purchases = Gross
credit purchases - purchase

return

Net sales = Total sales -

sales return
Net Profit

Earntgs before mterest and
taxes

Current Liabnltees

Shareholder’s Equity

Debt service = Interest &
Lease Payments +
Principal Repay ments

Average Sharcholder’s
Equity
Average limenton

Average Trade Receivable

Average Trade Payables

Working capital = Current
assets — Current habiliues

Net sales = Total safes -
sales return

Capial Employed =
Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deterved Tax
Liability

f 93

1777%

4%

1824

1 o9

676

2472

118,

09%

(20%)
02 9%
§9%

(72 7%

38 1%

(10 3%)

s

o
3

o

Improved hiquidity & profiabiiy

Reduction m working capitat cycle

Reduction m working capital cycle

Improved current ratio due to
improved hqwdny

Improved protitability on account of’
better marzins & volumes besides
reduction 1 debt due 1o better
hquidity




Mangalore Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
AN amounts i Induan Rupees Lakhs. exeept as otherwise stated)

44, Other Statutory Information

1y The Company does not have any Benan property. shere any proceeding has been mttrated or pending agamst the Company for halding any Benami property

iy The Struck off Company details

Name of the Struck off Conpany Nature of transactions Balance
with Outstanding
struck off company (INR)
Vaishak Shares Linuted ol 00
Pashkar Fmanaal Services Limuted 1oy
Eastcoast Investments Limited 1,000 00
Inuna Financial Services Limued Shares held by struck of 1.000.00
Kothart & Sons (Nommees) Private Linuted company 1,000 00
New Ambadi Invesiments Private Limited 3
Nawmath Tovestunents Private Limited 5.
(sha Holdings Private Limited 300.00

(i The Company does nathave any charges ar satstacton which s vet o be regssiered with ROC bey ond the statutors period
(v The Company has not raded or invested i Crvpto currency or Virtual Currency durmg the financial vear

() The Company has not advanced or Teaned or nmivested funds o any other person(s) o entity(ies), meluding foreran entities (Intermedhanies) with the understandimyg

that the Intermedsany shatl
(a) directly or indirectly fend or myest in ather persons or entities idenufied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalt of the company {Ulumate Beneticiartes) or

() provide any guarantee. security or the like 0 or on behalt of the Uttimate Beneticiaries

(v the Company has not recerved any fund trom any person{s) or entigy {1es), mcluding foreign entives (Fundmg Party ) wath the understanding iwhether recorded m
writing o otherwise) that the Company shall
ta) directty or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf ot the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneticiaries)
Bl
by provide any guarantee. security ar the like on behalt of the Utunate Beneliciaries

(vin) The Company has not any such transaction which 13 not recorded 1 the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as mcome during the year m the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1901
45, Capital management

For the purpose of the Conmpany’s capital management. capital includes 13sued equity capital and all other equty reserves attnbutable to the equity shareholders The
strong credit rating and capital ratos i order to support its business and maximise

primary objective of the Company's capital management ss t ensure that 1t mamtains

shareholder value

The Company moniors capital using a gearmg ratwo, whieh 1s net debt divided by total captal The Company includes withim net debt. all non-current and current
borrowings reduced by cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

As at As at

Notes March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Non-current borrowmnus 14 29,880 96 3500755
Lease Liabthues 15 1917 55 1,922 07
Current borrowings 9 72.003 77 1.00,099 37
Less Cash and cash equivalents 10 {27,942 94 {32,979 95)
Less: Other bank balances (excluding unpaid dividend accounts) 1 (4,743.51) (3,485 93)
Net debt (A) 71,175.83 1,01.223.71
Equity share captal 12 11.854.87 11,854.87
Other equity 13 82.113.55 08.403.95
Total equity (B} 93.968.42 80.318.82
76% 126%

Gearing ratio {A / B)

attached o the mterest-

Iv order 1o achieve this overall objectve, the Company s capital management, amongst other thigs, also ensures that it meets financial covenants
bearmy borrowings that define caputal structure requirements

No changes were made n the abjectives, policies or processes tor managng capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023




46 Previous vear figures have been regrouped  re-classified wherever necessary. to conform to current period’s classification
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